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HOWELL TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS

PROUD OF OUR SCHOOLS - CONCERNED FOR OUR CHILDREN

RONALD SANASAC {732) 751-2480 ext. 3801
Business Administrator/ FAX (732) 938-3964
Board Secretary EMAIL: rsanasac@howell.k12.nj.us

October 11, 2011

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Howell Township School District
Howell, New Jersey

Dear Members of the Board of Education:

It is with pleasure that we submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Howell
Township School District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This CAFR includes the District's Basic
Financial Statement prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including ali disclosures, rests with the District. To the best of our knowledge and belief, data presented in
this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the
financial position and results of operations of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections as follows:

¢+ The Introductory Section contains a table of contents, Letter of Transmittal, List of Principal
Officials, and an Organizational Chart of the School District;

+ The Financial Section begins with the Independent Auditors’ Report and includes the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes providing an
overview of the School District’s financial position and operating results, and other schedules
providing detailed budgetary information;

¢+ The Statistical Section includes selected economic and demographic information, financial
trends, and the fiscal capacity of the School District, generally presented on a multi-year basis;

+ The Single Audit Section — The District is required to undergo an annual audit in conformity with
the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1986, as amended, the U. S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations”, and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB, “Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid". Information related to this single
audit, including the independent auditor's report on the internal control and compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grants, along with findings and questioned costs, if
any, are included in the single audit section of this report.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Howell Township School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
GASB as established by Statement No. 14. All funds of the District are included in this report. The Howell
Township Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District continues to maintain a high quality of education, even though it is one of the largest K-8
districts in Monmouth County. The District provides a full range of programs and services appropriate to
grades K through 8. These include regular education, programs for the very able students (gifted and
talented), as well as special education for youngsters with disabilities in and out of district. Ten elementary
schools and three middle schools comprise the district's facilities. Although Southard School remains an
asset of the Howell Township Board of Education, the district consolidated the student population in the
other nine elementary schools, and is not utilizing Southard School for classroom purposes this school year.
The Board is presently investigating and pursuing options for the most useful and beneficial use of the
building.

Supervising district-wide goals is a district superintendent, an assistant superintendent for curriculum and
personnel, an assistant superintendent of pupil services, a business administrator/board secretary, four
district-wide curriculum supervisors, three supervisors of special education, and a director of technology.
Each K-5 elementary school has its own principal. K-5 schools with enroliment greater than 500 students
are assigned a full time vice-principal with district wide responsibilities. K-5 elementary schools that have
less than 500 students have their own lead teacher working directly with the principal. Each of two Howell
Township Middle Schools has one principal and two vice principals with district wide responsibilities. The
third Howell Township Middle School has one principal and one vice principal which also includes district
wide responsibilities.

The Board of Education, comprised of nine members, each elected to three-year terms, meets on the first
and third Wednesday of each month for the regular Board Meeting and other times each month for
committee meetings. During its meetings the board determines district goals and priorities and conducts the
business of the Board of Education. Board meetings are open to the public and begin at 7:30 PM.

PTAs/PTOs/SEPAC (Special Education Parents Advisory Council) are highly active in the District and
provide community support for a variety of programs and activities for the children.

To maintain effective communications, the district produces four newsletters. Howell Highlights are sent to
all parents in the community, in order to keep them well informed of school and district events. The district
also utilizes its web site to publish the board agenda in an effort to keep all interested citizens apprised of
district operations and activities.

Each of the schools in the district follows the district-wide goals and educational approaches to the
education of children, while maintaining a unique personality that makes up that particular school. All
curricula in the district have been aligned to the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards with the
exception of K-2 mathematics curriculum which is now aligned to the new Common Core National
Standards that have been adopted by the State.

The mission of the Howell Township School District is to educate students at all grade levels to achieve the
Standards and challenge them to become skillful communicators, independent thinkers, and life-long
learners. In reaching their full potential, our children will develop individual, social, and civic responsibility as
well as respect for themselves and their environment. To this end the district has developed a
comprehensive curriculum for each grade and each subject area that is rich in content while focusing on the
individual needs of the students.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: (Continued)

Elementary Schools: Grades K through 5

Currently, there are nine grade K-5 elementary schools (Adelphia School, Aldrich School, Ardena School,
Greenville School, Griebling School, Land O'Pines School, Newbury School, Ramtown School, and Taunton
School) providing a comprehensive educational program.

The district's balanced literacy programs focuses on the development of phonics, phonemic awareness,
vocabulary, comprehension, and fluency. Writing is integrated throughout all disciplines.

Mathematics skills and concepts are presented using a variety of hands-on materials and activities. Stress
is placed on providing real-life meaningful experiences so that students develop conceptual understanding
and an appreciation for mathematics.

Inquiry and discovery are the foundations of the science program. The students develop a better
understanding of the world around them by developing experiments and applying the scientific method.

The units of instruction for the social studies program are theme-based and promote literacy in the areas of
geography, history, economics, and civics.

Students begin learning Spanish in kindergarten and continue through the fifth grade. The students learn
the language through conversational techniques, as well as develop an appreciation for the cultures that
speak Spanish. At the middle school level, all students participate in World Language instruction. Upon
entering the middle school, students may elect to either continue their studies in Spanish, or begin studies in
French.

At the middle school the Gifted and Talented program is expanded to provide math acceleration in grades
6", 7" and 8" with a rigorous enrichment course of study in science, social studies and language arts.
Throughout all K-5 schools enrichment cluster grouping is provided to students identified as gifted and
talented. In addition, at the elementary level, a self contained 4" and 5" grade program is provided to those
students who also demonstrate giftedness.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: (Continued)

Howell Township Middie Schools

Grades 6 through 8

Grades six through eight are housed at each of the district's three middle schools. Each school is divided
into “houses.” Each “house” is designed as a “school within a school.” The “houses” are further divided into
teams. Each team has an assigned group of teachers and students. The team approach allows the faculty
to develop positive relationships with a relatively small group of students. The district has found this team
approach to be very successful at minimizing discipline problems and allowing the teachers to get a sense
of each student’s individual needs.

Special Education:

Special Education is an integral part of the educational system in the Howell Township Schools. Our
school district educates approximately 1,033 students classified eligible for special education and
related services. Our district provides a full continuum of services for students with disabilities.
Classes include preschool disabled, integrated preschool, regular classes with specialized support,
in-class resource, resource center pull out services and other special class programs. All students
are included with their general education peers to the maximum extent possible, and many students
are fully included in regular classes with assistance from paraprofessionals or Special Education
teachers. Our middle school program prepares our students with disabilities for their transition to
high school.

Core Curriculum Contents Standards

All district curricula is aligned with the New Jersey Core Content Curriculum Standards, with the exception of
K-2 mathematics is aligned with the Common Core Standards.

Staff Development

The Howell Township Public Schools System provides its teaching and support staff with many opportunities
for professional development.

All professional development in Howell Township addresses the Eight Key Elements of High Quality
Professional Development and supports the Definition of Professional Development from the No Child Left
Behind Act. The professional learning opportunities are aligned with and support the New Jersey
Professional Development Standards for Teachers.

In the beginning of the school year all newly hired teachers receive intensive in-service, encompassing
training in instructional strategies, classroom management, curriculum, mentoring, technology, district policy
and security. Mentors are assigned to novice teachers to provide support throughout the school year.

Professional development days are built into the school calendar to enable teachers to attend sessions
related to instructional strategies, curricular updates, content standards, data driven decision making, and
district-wide grade level and department articulation meetings.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: (Continued)

Technology

District-Wide technology is used to enrich teaching and learning, facilitate communication among all
members of the educational community, and to increase productivity. All classrooms, computer labs, media
centers, and offices in each of the twelve schools and administrative buildings are linked together via local
and wide area voice and data networks. All administrators, teachers, and support staff members have
computing capability with high speed Internet access and are provided email and voice mail accounts. To
assist teachers and students in presenting information and collaborating in Internet and other computer
based projects together, all classrooms in the district are equipped with ceiling mounted LCD projectors
and/or projection devices capable of presenting images via a computer, the Internet, cable TV, or local video
sources such as VCR's and DVD players.

In addition, all schools are equipped with mobile student laptops that connect to the district network via
wireless access points located throughout the buildings. All building administrators have access to laptop
computers, allowing for complete mobility in utilizing technology for office productivity as well as teacher
evaluation activities.

Pupil Enroliment
The following details the changes in the student enroliment of the district over the last ten years. The table

presents the actual historical pupil enroliment, as of October 15, for the school years 2001-02 through 2010-
11.

Enroliment

School Year As of October 15
2001-02 7,379
2002-03 7,424
2003-04 7,416
2004-05 7,333.5
2005-06 7259
2006-07 7289
2007-08 7090
2008-09 6920
2009-10 6783
2010-11 6773

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND QUTLOOK:

The rate of new home construction continues to stagnate and is reflected in a continued enroliment decline.
Current housing continues to turn over but the movement of young families with children has slowed.



3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

Construction

Construction completed, the Howell Memorial Middle School opened in September, 2004, No additional
major construction initiatives have been undertaken.

Pupil Services:

New Assistive Technology devices for students with disabilities.
Teacher coach who is a Board certified Behavior Analyst.
Ongoing training in all areas relative to working with students with special needs.
Inclusion initiative for grades K-5.

Integrated Preschool Program.

Life Skills classrooms and instruction.

Crisis Management certification for staff.

Crisis Response Network.

Tools of the Mind Preschool curriculum.

Community-based instruction as appropriate.

Parent Outreach Services.
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Business:

The Business Office continued to be busy in the 2010-2011 school year. Accomplishment/initiatives in this
school year were as follows:

% The business office continued to streamline the entire purchase order cycle with the implementation
of new procedures.

% The Business Administrator continues as the certified purchasing agent, aliowing the district to
increase the public bid threshold limit from $29,000 to $36,000.

% Streamlining of business functions through increased applications of technology.

»  Continued compliance with State and Federal mandates while minimizing impact on other business
workflow.

*
¢

Personnel:

The district employed 1060 persons during the 2010-2011 school year. The certificated staff numbered 632
including 31 administrators and supervisors and 601 classroom teachers and educational support personnel
(nurses, guidance counselors, child study team members, etc.). 428 other employees, including
instructional assistants, school aides, bus drivers and attendants, secretaries and clerk-typists, and
custodial and maintenance employees were also part of the staff.

One of the greatest challenges in a school district is to retain high standards for its staff, especially, during a
period when acute teacher shortages in some areas persisted. The district was able to accomplish this
through a highly competitive recruitment and selection process. Additionally, an impressive array of in-
service opportunities aflowed staff members to stay current and to improve their instructional skiils: a
hallmark of a progressive and innovative school district.

The district, for example, continued its new teacher mentoring program. All newly certified teachers and
most teachers new to the district were assigned mentors as well as supervisory advocates to assist them in
their first year. District administrators further provided these teachers with an extensive in-service program
designed to help them acclimate to their new working environment.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the district is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control system
designed to ensure that the assets of the district are protected from loss, theft or misuse; and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally-accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control system is designed to provide



4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS (cont)

reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state awards, the district also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate
internal control system is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts and
grants related to those programs. This internal control system is also subject to periodic evaluation by the
district management.

As part of the District's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine adequacy of the internal

control system, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as
to determine that the district has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the voters of the municipalities. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the
special revenue funds, and the debt service fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is
reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund
balance at fiscal year end.

6. CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute. The District has adopted a cash
management plan, which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under
the provision of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to
protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.
The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability, automobile liability
and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, fidelity bonds and
worker's compensation.



8. OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Robert A. Hulsart & Company, CPA's, was
selected by the Board to perform the audit. [n addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996, as amended and
the related OMB Circular A-133 and the New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04. The auditors’ report on the basic
financial statements and as well as both the required and other supplementary information is included in the
financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the
single audit section of this report.

9. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Howell Township Board of Education for
their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the School District and thereby
contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of
our business office staff.

Respectfully submitted, e,

Dr. Enid Golden /R/ d Sanasac
Superintendent of Schools “Business Administrator/
Board Secretary
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Telecopier:
5 e
. , CPA, MLMLA, F.O.A (. Box
ROBERT A. HULSART, JR,C.PA, PS.A. e-mail: Wall, New Jersey 07719-1408

rah@monmouth.com {732} 681-4990

RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR.,, CPA, PS.A.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Howell Township School District

County of Monmouth

Howell Township. New lJersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund of the Board of Education of the Howell Township School
District. in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey. as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30.
201 1. which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Howell Township Board of Education’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: and audit requirements as prescribed
by the Division of Finance. Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis. evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities. business-type activities. each major fund.
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Howell Township Board of Education. in the

County of Monmouth. State of New Jersey. as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial

position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards. we have also issued our report dated
October 11. 2011, on our consideration of the Howell Township Board of Education’s internal control
over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations.
contracts and grants agreements and other matters. The purpose of this report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing. and
o provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. This report is
al part of our audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stundards and should be

nott
an itegr

considered in ass

sing the results of our audit.




The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 14
through 19 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures. which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However. we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financtal statements that
collectively comprise the Howell Township Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying introductory section and other supplementary information such as the combining and
individual non-major fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules, and statistical information are

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and long-term debt schedules have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and. in our
opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The introductory section and statistical information have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and New Jersey
OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid
respectively, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT A. HULSART AND COMPANY

Robert A. Hulsart

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322

Robert A. Hulsart and Company

October 11,2011
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PART I



HOWELL TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
HOWELL TOWNSHIP

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Howell Township Public School District's financial performance provides
an overall review of the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The
intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District’s financial performance as a whole; it
should be read in conjunction with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report's (CAFR) Letter of
Transmittal that is found in the Introductory Section, and the School Board's financial statements found in
the Financial Section and the notes thereto.

The MD&A is a element of the Required Supplementary Information specified in the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 - “Basic Financial Statement and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” issued in June 1999.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2011 are as follows:

¢+ General revenues accounted for $111,395,673 in revenue or 97.5% percent of all revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and
contributions, and capital grants and contributions accounted for $2,797,099 or 2.5% percent
to total revenues of $114,192,772.

¢+ Total assets of governmental activities increased by $5,946,314 as cash and cash
equivalents increased by $2,994,779 receivables decreased by $15,121 and capital assets
decreased by $3,340,277.

¢ The School District had $110,618,799 in expenses; only $2,797,099 of these expenses were
offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues
{(primarily property taxes) of $114,192,772 were adequate to provide for these programs.

¢+ The General Fund had $103,513,323 in revenues and $99,886,297 in expenditures.
Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand Howell Township Public School District as a
financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly
detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole School district, presenting both an aggregate view of the School district’s finances and a longer-
term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental
funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for
future spending. In the case of Howell Township Public School District, the General Fund is by far the
most significant fund, with the Special Revenue Fund and Capital Project’s Fund also having significance.

The School Board’'s auditor has provided assurance in his Independent Auditor's Report, located
immediately preceding this Management's Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial Stalements
are fairly stated. A user of this report should read the Independent Auditor's Report carefully to ascertain
the level of assurance being provided for each of the other paris of the Financial Section.
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Reporting the School District as a Whole
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs
and activities, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the
question, “How did we do financially during the 2010-2011 fiscal year?” The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities
using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.
This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District's net assets and changes in those assets. This change
in net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the financial
positions of the School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the resuit
of many factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the School District's property
tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required educational
programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the Schoal District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

+ Governmental activities — All of the School District's programs and services are reported here
including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant
facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

+ Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service enterprise fund
is reported as a business activity. :

Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the School District's major funds. The School
District uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund
financial statements focus on the School District's most significant funds. The School District's major
governmental funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt
Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School district's general government operations
and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educationat programs.
The relationship (or differences) among governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, these
statements are essentially the same.



The School District as a Whole
Recall that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the School District as a whole.

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District's net assets for the fiscal year 2011

Table 1
Net Assets
2011
Assets
Current and other assets $ 6,337,000
Capital assets, net $ 91,108,459
Total assets $ 97,445,458
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities $ 51872694
Other liabilities $ 7,129,344
Total liabilities $ 59,002,038
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of debt $ 35446602
Restricted $ 6,542,075
Unrestricted 3 (3,545,256)
Total net assets $ 38,443,421

Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the need to routinely seek voter approval for
the School District operations. Property taxes made up 62% of revenues for governmental activities for
the Howell Township Public School District for fiscal year 2011. Federal, state and local grants
accounted for another 36%.

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District's business-type activities (food service program) were comprised of charges for
services and federal and state reimbursements.

+ Food service revenues exceeded expenditures by ($9.863).

+ Charges for services represent $1,422 437 of revenue. This represents amount paid by
patrons for daily food services.

+ Federal and state reimbursements for meals, including payments for free and reduced
funches and donated commodities were $495 608
Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services.



Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction
between teachers and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and
process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration school administration and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in an effective working condition.

Curriculum and staff development include expenses related to planning, research, development and
evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to the public.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as
well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

Extracurricular activities include expenses related to student activities provided by the School District
which are designed to provide opportunities for students to participate in school events, public events, or
a combination of these for the purposes of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other
related charges to debt of the School District.

Other includes unallocated depreciation and amortization.
The School District’s Funds

The School Board uses funds to control and manage meney for particular purposes. The Fund's basic
financial statements allow the School Board to demonstrate its stewardship over and accountability for
resources received from the Township of Howell's taxpayers and other entities, including the State of
New Jersey and the Federal Government. These statements also allow the reader to obtain more insight
into the financial workings of the School Board, and assess further the School Board’s overall financial
health.

As the School Board completed the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, it reported a combined net asset
balance of $38,443,421. The reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities present the reader with a detailed
explanation to the differences between the net change in fund balances and changes in net assets.

The School Board's budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the School Board revises its budget as it attempts to take into consideration
unexpected changes in revenue and expenditures.

A schedule showing the School Board's original and final budget compared with actual operating resuits
is provided in the section of the CAFR entitled Budgetary Comparison Schedules. The School Board
generally did better than had been budgeted in its General Fund since it practices conservative budgetary
practices in which revenues are forecasted very conservatively and expenditures are budgeted with
worst-case scenarios in mind.

The excesses will be carried forward into the beginning fund balance for the 2011-2012 fiscal year and
will be used to fund the 2011-2012 fiscal budget.
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Capital Assets

At the June 30, 2011, the School District had approximately $91,108,459 invested in a broad range of
capital assets, including land, buildings, furniture, vehicles, computers, instructional equipment and other
equipment. This amount is net of accumulated depreciation to date. Table 2 below shows the net book
value of capital assets at the end of the 2011 fiscal year.

Table 2
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30
2011
Land $ 5,348,018
Construction in progress 3 0
Building and improvements $ 82,973,790
Machinery and equipment $ 2,786,851
Totals $ 91,108,459

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2011, the School district had $58,601,762 as outstanding debt. Of this amount, $2,660,671 is
for compensated absences, $2,462 107 for capital leases, $12,132 of instaliment obligations and the
balance $53,466,852 for bonds for school construction.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

The Howell Township Public School District is in very good financial condition presently. Future finances
are not without chailenges as the community population continues to fluctuate and state funding is
decreased.

The Township of Howell is primarily a residential community, with very few ratables, and is presently
experiencing a slowing of what little ratable growth had been experienced. The majority of revenues
needed to operate the District are derived from homeowners through property tax assessments and
collections, which are voted by the residents annually.

The ($3,545,256) in unrestricted net assets for all governmental activities represents the accumulated
results of all past years’ operations. This means that if the School Board had to pay off ail bills today,
including all of the School Board's non concurrent liabilities such as compensated absences, the School
Board would have a deficit of 3,545,256 The district also has $1.00 in capital reserve monies as well as
the fair market value of the capital assets.

At this time, the most important factor affecting the budget is the unsettled situation with State Aid and
Tax Levy caps. Since expenses continue to increase due to inflationary and legislative pressures and
revenues are fixed, the district must reduce expenses to compensate.

The School Board cannot accurately forecast future enroliment, but presently is experiencing a continued
reversal of the past growth trend.

In conclusion, the Howell Township Public School District has committed itself to financial excellence for
many vears. in addition, the School District's system for financial planning, budgeting, and internal
financial controls are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to
meet the challenge of the fulure,



Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the School district’s finances and to show the School District's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have any questions about this report or require additional information contact Ronald
Sanasac, Business Administrator/Board Secretary at Howell Township Board of Education, P.O. Box 579,
Howell, New Jersey 07731.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - A



Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Inventory
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Reserve Account-Cash
Capital Assets-Non-Depreciable
Capital Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Deferred Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted For:
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Other Purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Exhibit A-1
JUNE 30, 2011
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ - 137,938 137,938
3.013.986 28.229 3.042.215
39.719 39.719

3.117,127 3.117,127

1 I

5.348.018 5.348.018
85,674,704 85,737 85,760,441
97.153.836 291,623 97,445,459
123,916 106,307 230,223
449,287 449,287
6.449.834 6.449.834
51.872.694 51,872,694
58.895.731 106,307 59,002.038
35,360,865 85.737 35.446.602

| 1

81.110 g1.110
6.460.964 6,460,964
(3,644.835) 99,579 (3.545.256)

S 38.258.105 185,316 38,443 421

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - B



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Assets

Cash-Restricted

Cash- caseback-Restricted
Receivables from Other Governments
Accounts Receivable

Interfund Receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
1 iabilities:

Accounts Payable

Interfund Payable

Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilitics

Fund Balance:
Restricted for:
Excess Surplus-Current Year
Commitied To:
Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures -
Eixcess Surplus
Capital Reserve Account
Assigned To:
Other Purposcs
Designated Tor Subsequent Years Expenditures By The BOE
Unassigned:
General Fund
Capual Projects
Debt Service Fund
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and 'und Balance

Amounts reported for governmental activities in
the Statement of Net Assets {(A-1) are different
because:

Caprtal assets used in governmental acuvities
are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported m the funds, The cost of the
assets 1s $149.134.784 and the accumulated
depreciation 13 38,132,062

Long-term habilitics. including bonds pavable, are
not due and pavable in the current pertod and
therefore are not reported as habilitics m the

funds (see Note 33

Netagsets of povernaw activites

The sccompanying Notes to Fmancial Statements are an mtegral part of this statement.

BALAN

SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Exhibit B-1

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 2994798 i 2.994.799
122.329 122.329
559450 1.444.925 813.713 2.818.088
195.898 195.898
1.726.654 1.726,654
§ 5399129 1.444,925 813.713 ] 7.857.768
$ 122,329 1.587 123916
994051 732.603 1.726.654
449287 449287
122.329 1444925 732.603 - 2.299.857
772.620 772.620
305192 305.192
1 1
2.598.504 39.573 2.638.077
2.194.808 2.194.808
(394.3253) (394.3253)
41.537 41.537
I !
5.476.800 - 81.110 | 5.557.911

$ 5.599.129 1.444.925 813.713 I
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Exhibit B-3

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (From B-2) $ 3,057,902

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Activities (A-2) are Different Because:
Capital Outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in
the period.
Depreciation Expense (3,353,902)
Capital Outlays 3,422,597
68,695

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
assets and is not reported in the statement of activities. 5,450,682

In the statement of activities certain operating expenses, compensated
absences are measured by the amount earned during the year. In the
government funds however, expenditures for these items are reported
in the amount of financial resources paid. 89,879

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt in the statement of
activities is accrued, regardless of when due. In the governmental fund,
interest is reported when due. 299,193

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (A-2) $ 8,966,351

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:
State
Federal
Inventory
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Net Assets
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Exhibit B-4
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Enterprise
Fund

$ 137,938

1,430
26,799
39,719

205,886

1,171,911
(1,086,174)

85,737

$ 291,623

$ 106,307

$ 85,737
99,579

$ 185,316

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
Exhibit B-5

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30,2011

Enterprise
Fund
Operating Revenues:
Daily Sales $ 1,409,298
Miscellaneous 13,139
Total Operating Revenues 1,422,437
Operating Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits A 905,638
Cost of Sales 860,884
Supplies and Materials 58,628
Audit 4,000
Commodities Processing 12,212
Depreciation 18,960
Uniforms 6,002
Office Supplies 2,643
Equipment/Repairs 46,965
Miscellaneous 12,057
Operating Expenses 1,927,989
Operating Gain/(Loss) (505,552)
Non-Operating Revenues:
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program 21,200
Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program 397,548
Breakfast Program 17,129
Special Milk Program 3,462
Food Distribution Program 56,269
Interest Income 81
Total Non-Operating Revenues 495,689
Change in Net Assets (9.863)
Net Assets - July 1 195,179
Net Assets - June 30 $ 185316

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 29.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Exhibit B-6
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Enterprise
Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Receipts from Customers $ 1,422,437

Payments to Employees & Benetfits (905,638)

Payments to Supplies (990,749)
Net Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (473,950)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:

State Sources 21,200

Federal Sources 418,139
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 439,339
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest 81
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (34,530)
Balance - July 1 172,468
Balance - June 30 $ 137,938
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) $ (505,552)
Depreciation 18,960
Federal Commodities 56,269
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventory (1,932)
(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable (55,629)
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable 13,934
Net Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (473.950)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



30.
HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Exhibit B-7
JUNE 30,2011

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust
Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 439,560
Total Assets $ 439,560
Net Assets:

Reserved - Unemployment Claims $ 439,560
Total Net Assets $ 439,560

The accompanyving Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30,2011

Additions
Contributions:
Plan Member
Interest Earned
Total Contributions

Deductions
Unemployment Claims

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - July 1

Net Assets - June 30

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit B-8

Unemployment
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$ 439,560
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2011

NOTE 1: Summary of Sienificant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Howell Township
School District (District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board’s accounting policies are
described below.

A. Reporting Entity:

The Howell Township School District is a Type 1l district located in the County of
Monmouth, State of New Jersey. As a Type Il district, the School District functions
independently through a Board of Education. The board is comprised of nine members elected to
three-year terms. The purpose of the district is to educate students in grades K-8. The Howell
Township School District had an approximate enrollment at June 30, 2011 of 6.800 students.

The students Grades 9-12 are educated by the Freehold Regional High School District of
which Howell Township is a member.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District’s reporting entity, as set
forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Government Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards. is whether:

e The organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

e The District holds the corporate powers of the organization

e The District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

e The District is able to impose its will on the organization

e The organization has the potential to impose a financial/benefit/burden on the District
There is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the District as a whole
excluding fiduciary activities such as student activities. Individual funds are not displayed but
the statements distinguish governmental activities. generally supported by state and federal aid,
tuition and county tax levies, from business-type activities generally financed in whole or in part
with fees charged to external parties.



NOTE 1: Summary of Sienificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program
revenues directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar
activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the
expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues
include (1) charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of the District’s
services and (2) operating grants and contributions. These revenues are subject to externally
imposed restrictions to these program uses. Tax levies and other revenue sources not properly
included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary
funds. The New Jersey Department of Education (the “Department”) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option
noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The Department believes that the presentation of all funds
as major is important for public interest and to promote consistency among district financial
reporting models.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement
Presentation

The financial statements of the District are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The District’s reporting entity applies all relevant
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The government-wide
and proprietary fund financial statements apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)

pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November

30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. in
which case, GASB prevails.

The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination
of internal activity (between or within funds). Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is
not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows. County tax
revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied while grants are recognized when
grantor eligibility requirements are met. The Unemployment Trust Fund recognizes employer
y

and employee contributions in the period in which contributions are due.

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to apply current liabilities. The District considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund lability is incurred. except for long-term pension and
compensated absences. which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual includes Intergovernmental revenues. and
the county tax levy. In general. other revenues are recognized when cash is received.



NOTE 1: Summary of Sienificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

(Continued)

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues
and expenses related to the primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating
revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for food sales and for services provided
to other governmental entities. Principles operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or
services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues
and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements.

D. Fund Accounting:

The accounts of the District are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund
accounting to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The
principles of fund accounting require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting
purposes into funds or account groups in accordance with activities or objectives specified for
the resources. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.
An account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide
accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do
not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds are classified into three
categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in turn. is divided into
separate “fund types™.

Governmental Fund Tvpes

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is
used to account for all expendable financial resources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund: The District accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes in the special revenue funds.

Capital Projects Fund: the capital projects fund is used to account for all financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other
than those financed by proprietary funds).

Debt Services Fund: The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for. and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance
major property acquisition, construction and improvement programs.

Proprietary Fund Type

similar to private business enterprises, in which the intent of the District is that the
costs of providing goods or services to the District on a continuing basis be financed or
H

recovered primarily through user charges.
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NOTE 1: Summaryv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Fund Accounting (Continued):

Fiduciary Fund Tvpes

Trust and Agency Funds: The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets
held by the District on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on
behalf of other funds within the District.

Unemplovment Compensation Trust Fund: The trust fund is used to account for assets
held under the terms of a formal trust agreement. The District reimburses the costs of
unemployment benefits paid by the New Jersey Department of Labor.

Agency Funds (Payroll and Student Activities Fund): Agency funds are used to
account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency
funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general,
special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the County office and are
voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting: the legal level of budgetary control is established
at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in
N.JA.C. 6A:23-2.2(2)t. All budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution.
Budget amendments during the yvear ended June 30, 2011 were insignificant.

The Public School Education Act of 1975, limits the annual increase of any district’s net
current expense budget. The Commissioner of Education certifies the allowable amount for each
district but may grant a higher level of increase if he determines that the sums so provided would
be insufficient to meet the identified goals and needs of the district or that an anticipated
enrollment increase requires additional funds.

The Commissioner must also review every proposed local school district budget for the
next school year. He examines every item of appropriations for current expenses and budgeted
capital outlay to determine their adequacy in relation to the identified needs and goals of the
district. . in his view. they are msufficient, the Commissioner must order remedial action. If
necessary, he is authorized to order changes in the local district budget.

Once a budget is approved, it can be amended by transfers or additional appropriation of
fund balances by approval of a majority of the members of the Board. Amendments are
presented to the Board at their regular meetings. Each amendment must have Board approval.
Such amendments are made before the fact. are reflected in the official minutes of the Board. and
are not made after fiscal vear-end as dictated by law. Individual transfers were not material in
relation to the original appropriations. All uncommitted budget appropriations lapse at year-end.



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued):

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management
control device during the vear. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences
between the budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the
exception of the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed
as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The following presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues and special revenue
fund revenues and expenditures from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the
Combined Statement of Revenues., Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual — General. Special Revenues and Debt Service Funds to the GAAP basis of accounting as
presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
— All Governmental Fund Types. Note that the District does not report encumbrances
outstanding at year end as expenditures in the general fund since the general fund budget follows
modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition policy for the last state aid
payment.

F. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation.
Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received
advances are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal vear. An entry
will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the

certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

G. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Pavables:

Short-Term interfund receivables/pavables represents amounts that are owed. other than
charges for good or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due
within one vear,

H. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories and prepaid expenses. which benetit future periods. are recorded as an

expenditure during the vear of purchase. The value of inventories remaining at the end of the
fiscal vear is not included on the balance sheet.



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

H. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses (Continued)

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost. which approximates market. using the
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fund represent payments
made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 201 1.

1. Capital Assets and Depreciation

The District’s property. buildings and improvements, equipment, vehicles, furniture and
fixtures with useful lives of five years or more are stated at historical or estimated historical cost
and are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary Fund capital assets are
reported in its respective fund.

The District contracted with an outside service company during the 2003 fiscal year to
provide a report with a comprehensive detail of capital assets and depreciation. The report
included capital assets purchased during the 2002-2003 fiscal year and prior with a historical cost
of $2.000 or more. The records have been updated to June 30. 201 1. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend the useful lives
are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital
assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the
respective accounts. Estimated useful lives. in years. for depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 20-50
Equipment and Vehicles 5-20
Furniture and Fixtures 5-20

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 20190 Additions Retirements  June 30,2011
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets That Are
Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 5348018 5.348.018
Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated 5348018 o o 5,348,018
Depreciable Assets:
Site Improvements 9.258.037 9.258.037
Buildings 122.207.945 26,625 122.234.570
Machinery & Equip. _ 12.327.159 ) ~13.000 12,314,159

13.000 143.806.76

o

Total 143,793 141
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NOTE t: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
I. Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)
Balance Balance
Julv 1, 2010 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2011
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation:
Sites {3,865.765) (393.030) {4.258.795)
Buildings (41.919.864) (2.340.158) (44,260,022)
Machinery& Equip. (8.992.531) (620.714) (9.613.245)
Total Accumulated
Depreciation (54,778.160) (3.353.902) (58.132.062)

Net Depreciable Assets __89.014.98] (3.327.277)

13,000 85.674.704

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets (Net)  $94,362,999

(3,327.277)

13,000 91,022,722

Depreciations expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

$ 3,353,902

Balance
Retirements  June 30,2011

Unallocated
Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions

Business-Type Activities:

Equipment $1.171.911
Less: Accumulated

Depreciation:

Equipment {1.067.214) (18.960)

Business-Type Capital
Assets (Net) $ 104,697 (18,960)

1171911
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NOTE 1: Summary of Sienificant Accounting Pelicies (Continued)

J. Compensated Absences

District employees are permitted, within certain limitations. to accrue vacation and sick
leave in varying amounts under the Districts personnel policies and may be paid at a later date
according to contractual agreements.

The lability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is
recorded in the government-wide financial statements as a non-current liability. Governmental
funds report only matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating employees and
are included in wages and benefits payable

K. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the general and special revenue funds represent cash which has been
received but not yet earned. Deferred revenue in the general fund represents monies received for
fiscal year 2010. See Note 1(F) regarding the special revenue fund.

L. Fund Equity
The governmental fund financial statements report reserved fund balance for amounts
not available for appropriation or legally restricted for specified purposes. The general fund

reserve for restricted purposes includes net assets relating to capital reserve (See Note 9).

NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and
short term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market. The District classifies
certificates of deposit, which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than
twelve months from the date of purchase. as investments.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public
depositories located in New Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the
United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also
permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of
public funds that exceed depository insurance limits as follows:
The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average
daily balance of collected public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75%
of the capital funds of the depository. the depository must provide collateral having a market

value at least equal to 100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

39,



NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Depaosits

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia. the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York. or a banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than
$25.000.000.

Investments
New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations
guaranteed by the United States.

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home
Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage Agency or any United
States Bank for cooperatives which have a maturity date not greater
than twelve months from the date of purchase.

c. Bonds or other obligations of the school district.

-

As of June 30. 2011, cash and cash equivalents and investments of the District consisted
of the following:

Cash and Cash

Equivalents
Checking and Money Market Accounts $ 3,892,247

The carrying amount of the District’s cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2011 was
$3.892.247 and the bank balance was $6.069.847. Of the bank balance, $200.000 was covered
by federal depository insurance and $5.869.847 was covered by a collateral pool maintained by
the banks as required by New lJersey statutes.

Credit Risk Categories

All bank deposits and investments as of the balance sheet date are classified as to credit
risk by the following categories described below:

Bank Balance

June 30,2011 June 36,2010
Depository Account
Insured:
FDIC $ 200,000 300,000

GUDPA 5,869,847 1.561.79]

40.
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NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a formal policy for custodial credit
risk.

The District had no uninsured deposits.

As of December 31. 2011 the District did not hold any long-term investments.

NOTE 3: General Long-Term Debt

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the following changes occurred in liabilities
reported in the general long-term debt account group:

Balance Balance Long-Term  2011-12
June 30,2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011 Portion Pavment
Compensated Absences

Payable $ 2,750,550 89.879 2,660,671 2,660,671
Capital Leases Payable 4,186,604 2,003,791 2,182,873 1,401,586 781,287
Installment Obligation 18,198 6,066 12,132 6,066 6,066
Bonds Payable 57.621.468 4.154.616 53.466.852 47.804.371 5,662,481
$ 64,576,880 o 6,254,352 58,322,528 51.872.,694 6,449,834
A. Bonds Payable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality
through referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of
usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are of general obligation bonds.

Date of Interest Balance

School Issue Rate June 30, 2011
Small Project 08-18-93 1.50% $ 53.880
Small Project (8-18-93 5.29% 217,972
Middle School (Refunded) 01-07-98 3.75% to 4.80% 3.050.000
Construction of 3 Schools 07-19-02 3.20% t0 5.25% 18.400.000
Middle School (Refunded) 47-19-02 2.00% to 5.25% 9.685.000
ERIP (Refunded) 02-19-03 2.00% to 5.875% 2.580.0600
Pension Series 2005 (3-08-05 3.70% to 5.35% 14.140.000
Construction of 3 Schools

(Refunded) 07-15-19 3.60% to 5.25% 5,340,000



NOTE 3: General Long-Term Debt (Continued)

A. Bonds Pavable (Continued)

Maturitv Schedule

42.

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending June 30,

2012 $ 5,662,481 2,257.658 7.920,139
2013 5.920,566 1,998,978 7,919,544
2014 4,563,805 1.764.274 6.328.079
2015 4,665,000 1,566.951 6,231,951
2016 4.865.000 1,362,087 6.227.087
2016-2020 22,620,000 3.591.293 26,211,293
2021-2025 5.035,600 302.810 5.337.810
2026-2028 135.600 8.078 143.078

$ 53.4606.852 12,852,129 66,318,981

B. Capital Leases

2010 various equipment (@ 2.91% interest for 5 years maturing 9/17/14 with a balance of

$1.257.425 at June 30, 2011.

2008 various equipment @ 0% interest for 5 years maturing 8/18/11 with a balance of

$40.491 at June 30, 201 1.

2008 equipment lease @ 0% interest for 5 years maturing 7/15/12 with a balance of

$613.741 at June 30. 201 1.

2007 equipment lease @ 3.986% interest for 5 vears maturing 9/30/12 with a balance of

$271.146 at June 30, 2011,

Future Minimum Lease Pavments

Less: Interest

lease Payments

Installment Oblisations

$ 828.625
788.135
337.532
337.532

2.291.824

_ (108951

Underground storage tank < no interest dated 8/15/02 for 10 vears maturing [1/1/2012

with a balance of $12.132 at June 30, 201 1.



NOTE 3: General Long-Term Debt (Continued)

B. Capital Leases (Continued)

Maturitv Schedule

Principal

2011-2012 $ 6.066
2012-2013 6.066

$.12,132
NOTE 4: Pension Plans

Description of Plans — All required employees of the District are covered by either the
Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers™ Pension and Annuity Fund which have
been established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and
Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations
of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the
Teacher’s Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Division
of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton. New Jersey, 08625,

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide
retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The
Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a
special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing
employers.  Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the
professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners. and employees of the Department of
Education who have titles that are unclassified. professional and certified.

Public Emplovees’ Retirement System (PERS) — The Public Employees’ Retirement
System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to
provide retirement, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The
Public Employees Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality. school district. or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a
member of another state-administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.




NOTE 4: Pension Plans (Continued)

Vesting and Benefit Provisions — The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set
by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B. and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to
ten years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement
benefits for age and service are available at age 60 and are generally determined to be 1/60 of the
final average salary for each year of service credit. as defined. Final average salary equals the
average salary for the final three years of service prior to retirement (or highest three years’
compensation it other than the final three years). Members may seek early retirement after
achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to
ten years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of the month after the
member attains normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provide for specified medical
benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 vyears of qualified service, as defined, or
under the disability provision of the System.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of
service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contribution. In the case of
death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the
members’ accounts.

Significant Legislation - During the year ended June 30, 1997, legislation was enacted
Chapter 114, P.L. 1997) authorizing the New Jersey Economic Development Authority to issue
bonds, notes or other obligations for the purpose of financing, in full or in part, the State of New
Jersey’s portion of the unfunded accrued liability under the State of New Jersey retirement
systems. Additional legislation enacted during the year ended June 30, 1997 (Chapter 115, P.L.
1997). changed the asset valuation method from market related value to full-market value. This
legislation also contains a provision to reduce the employee contribution rate by 2 of 1% to
4.5% for calendar years 1998 and 1999, and to allow for a reduction in the employee’s rate after
calendar year 1999, providing excess valuation assets are available. The legislation also
provided that the Districts’ normal contributions to the Fund may be reduced based on the
revaluation of assets. Due to recognition of the bond proceeds and the change in asset valuation
method as a result of enactment of Chapters 114 and 115, all unfunded accrued liabilities were
eliminated, except for the unfunded liability for local early retirement incentive benefits,
accordingly. the pension costs for TPAF and PERS were reduced.

Funding Policy — The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and
contributions are required by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and
employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS
provide for employee contributions of 5% of employees™ annual compensation. as defined.
Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS.
The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments,
noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the

District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

Legislation enacted during 1993 provides early retirement incentives for certain members
of TPAF and PERS who met certain age and service requirements and who applied for retirement
between certain dates in the 1994 fiscal year. The early retirement incentives included: (a) an
additional five vears of service credit for employees at least age 50 with a minimum of 25 years
of service: (b) free health benefits for emplovees at least 60 years old with at least 20 years of
service; and (¢} an additional $500 per month for two years for employees at least age 60 with 10
vears but less than 20 years of service. The Board will assume the increased cost for the early
retirement as it affects their districts.
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NOTE 4: Pension Plans (Continued)

During the vear ended June 30, 2011, the State of New Jersey contributed $3.243.456 to
the TPAF for post-retirement medical benefits on behalf of the District. Also. in accordance with
N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $3,412,100 during the year
ended June 30,2011 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members
as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts have been included in the general-purpose
financial statements. and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and
schedules as revenues and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Cantributed Obligation
6/30/11 $ 1.599,263 100% $0
6/30/10 1.819,127 100% 0
6/30/09 656,312 100% 0

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF (Paid On-Behalf of the District)

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
/30/11 $3.243.,456 100% $0
6/30/10 3.137.899 100% 0
6/30/09 3,031,150 100% 0
NOTE 5: Post-Retirement Benefits

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990. c.6 required Teachers™ Pensions and Annuity Fund
(TPAF) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). respectively, to fund post-
retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of
credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢. 103 amended the law to eliminate the
funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate
funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical
benefits for retired State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30. 2010,
there were 87.288 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these
benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62.
Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-
go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994,

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 ¢. 126, which provides
free health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a
board of education or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $126.3 million
toward Chapter 126 benefits for 14.050 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2010.



NOTE 6: Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g.. unused vacation, sick leave) as
directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16).
“Accounting for Compensated Absences™. A liability for compensated absences attributable to
services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the
employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the right to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance
with the District’s personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation.
The District’s policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the
full amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the District for the
unused sick leave in accordance with the District’s agreements with the various employee
unions.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Assets. the liabilities whose average maturities are

greater than one year should be reported in two components — the amount due within one year
and the amount due in more than one vear.

NOTE 7: Capital Reserve Account

A capital reserve account was established by the Township of Howell Board of
Education by inclusion of $1 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures
in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its
activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the
district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the
department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in
the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal
at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to
N.J.S.A.19:60-2. Pursuant to N..JA.C. 6:23A-5.1(d) 7, the balance in the account cannot at any
time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1. 2010 to June 30, 2011 fiscal year is as
follows:

Beginning Balance July 1. 2010 $1
Ending Balance June 30,2011 $1
NOTE 8: inventory

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following:

Food
Supplies
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NOTE 8: Inventory (Continued)

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the
Single Audit Law of 1984) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at
the date of purchase and has been included as an item of nonoperating revenue in the financial
statements.

NOTE 9: Fund Balance Appropriated

General Fund — Of the $8,421.820 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2011.
$2,598,504 is reserved for encumbrances; $1 is Capital Reserve: $2.500,000 has been
appropriated and also included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2012;
$772.620 is excess surplus; and $2,550,695 is unreserved and undesignated.

NOTE 10: Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance —
Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to
reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a
required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. There
was an excess fund balance at June 30, 2011 of $772.620.

NOTE 11: Contingent Liabilities

The Board is involved in several claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the
opinion of the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect of the financial position of the District.

NOTE 12: Tuition Adjustments

Regulations specify that tuition adjustments for any given school year shall be
remitted/received in the two following years after the tuition rate is certified. These adjustments
have not been reflected on the June 30, 2011 financial statements.

NOTE 13: Economic Dependency

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state
governments. A significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, may have an
effect on the District’s programs and activities.

NOTE 14: Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of. damage to. and
destruction of assets: errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.



NOTE 14: Risk Management (Continued)

Property and Liability Insurance — The District maintains commercial insurance
coverage for property. liability. student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of
insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemplovment Compensation Insurance — The District elected to fund
its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement
Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment
Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State.
The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of
District contributions. employee contributions. reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and
the ending balance of the District’s expendable trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Employer Employee
Fiscal Year Contributions  Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2010-2011 156 571515 452,974 439,560
2009-2010 146 535,476 264,144 320,863
2008-2009 216 95,365 105,547 49 385

NOTE 15: Refunding Bonds

Refunding bonds were sold on July 19, 2002 for $13.435.000 to refund principal and
interest on the 1997 Middle School bonds leaving an aggregate principal amount of $4.115.000

Series 1997 Bonds which will be fully amortized on July 15, 2007. This issue is fully insured by

AMBAC Guaranty Insurance Company. The issuing funds have been deposited in an escrow
deposit trust fund to defease all the callable bonds on July 15, 2007.

Refunding bonds were sold on March 8, 2005 for $19.080.000. The Boards unfunded
accrued liability in the PERS and TPAF systems under ERI pension fund liabilities.

The bonds maturing prior to July 15, 2016 are not subject to redemption prior to their
stated maturities. The bonds of this issue maturing on or after July 15. 2016 are subject to
redemption prior to their stated maturity at the option of the Board, in whole or in part, on any
date. on or after July 15, 2015 upon notice as required herein at 100% of the principal amount
(the “Redemption Price™). plus in each case accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.

Refunding revenue bonds were sold on March 15. 2006 for $5,008.000 for restructuring
PUIposes.

NOTE 16: Onerating Leases

On June 29, 2011 the District entered into an operating lease with Xerox for 17 copiers

at an annual lease pavment of $62.617.84 for 5 years beginning 7/15/2012 and ending 7/1 572016,
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NOTE 17: Contingent Liabilities

The Board is involved in several claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the
opinion of the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect of the financial position of the District.

NOTE 18: F.quity Balance

At June 30, 2011 the General Fund equity balance was as follows:

Restricted Fund Balances:

Excess Surplus — Current Year § 772,620
Committed Fund Balance:

Capital Reserve i

Excess Surplus — Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures 305,192

Assigned Fund Balances:
Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures 2,19
Year-End Encumbrances 2.598.504
Unassigned Fund Balance 2.5

$ 8.421.820

2% Calculation of Excess Surplus

2010-11 Total General Fund Expenditures Per the CAFR $99.886,297
Decreased by:

On-Behalf TPAF Pension & Social Security (6,655.556)
Adjusted 2010-11 General Fund Expenditures $ 93,230,741
2% of Adjusted 2010-11 General Fund Expenditures $ 1,991,245
Enter Greater of Above or $250.000 $ 1.991.245
Increased by Allowable Adjustment _559.450
Maximum Unassigned Fund Balance $.2,550,695

Section 2
Total General Fund — Fund Balance @ 6-30-11 $8.421.820

Decreased by:

Reserved by Encumbrances (2.598.504)
Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures (2.194.808)
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures — Excess Surplus (305.192)
Other Reserves (b
Total Unassigned Fund Balance $ 3,323,315

Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus $ 772,620



NOTE 18: Equity Balance (Continued)

Section 3
Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus Designated for

Subsequent Expenditures $ 305,192
Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus 772.620

$1.077.812

Detail of Allowable Adjustments
Non Public Transportation $ 30,387
Extraordinary Aid 529.063
Total Adjustments $.559.450
Detail of Other Reserved Fund Balances
Capital Reserve $1

NOTE 19: Significant Account Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 105. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. which establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as the sole source of
authoritative generally accepted accounting principles. Pursuant to the provisions of FASB ASC
105, the District has updated references to GAAP in its financial statements issued for the period
ended June 30. 2011. The adoption of FASB ASC 105 did not impact the District’s financial
position or results of operations.

In May 2009, the FASB updated ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which is effective for
reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. ASC 855 establishes general standards of
accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the
financial statements are issued, or are available to be issued. The District adopted the amended
sections of ASC 855 and it did not have an impact on the District’s financial statements. The
District evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 2011 through October 11,
2011.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Exhibit C-3
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO RSI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund

Sources/Inflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) "revenues” from the
budgetary comparison schedules $ 103,001,762 3,213,778

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized. (416,679)

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary 3,456,581
purposes.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year. (2,945,020)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds. $ 103,513,323 2,797,099

Uses/Outflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from
the budgetary comparison schedule $ 99,886,297 3,213,778

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial reporting purposes. (416,679)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds.

Lo

99,886,297 2,797,099




OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES - D
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - F



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Exhibit F-1
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Expenditures:
Construction Services 962
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (962)
Fund Balance - Beginning 42,499

Fund Balance - Ending $ 41,537

68.



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

A o sSSP A it

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

ADDITION TO ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

o e e it st o A A0S

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SDA Grant

Local Share-Budget

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Additional Project Information
Project Number's

Grant Date
Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Exhibit F-1a

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost

$ 119419 119,419 119,419
160,511 160,511 160,511
279,930 - 279,930 279,930
250,883 250,883 250,883
250,883 - 250,883 250,883

$ 29,047 - 29,047 29,047

2290-020-09-0SA0
2290-030-09-0SAQ
2290-060-09-0SAW

2009-2010
$ 279,930

0

89%
9/1/2010
9/1/2010
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

ADDITION TO ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SDA Grant

Local Budget

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Additional Project Information
Project Number's

Grant Date
Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Exhibit F-1b

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost

§ 694,294 694,294 694,294
933,206 933,206 933,206
1,627,500 - 1,627,500 1,627,500
1,614,048 962 1,615,010 1,627,500
1,614,048 962 1,615,010 1,627,500

$ 13,452 (962) 12,490 -

2290-020-09-OSAP

2290-032-09-0SAS

2290-040-09-0SAU

2009-2010
$1,627,500

0

99%
9/1/2010
9/172011
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Total Schools

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit H-3
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011
Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2010 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2011
$ 176,270 263,949 278,995 161,224




HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND

Exhibit H-4
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
JUNE 30,2011
Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011
Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 448.184 28.696.977 20.113.631 31.530
Total Assets $ 448,184 28.696.977 26.113.631 31.530
Liabilities:

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings $ 448,184 28.696,977 29.113.631 31,530
Total Liabilities $ 448.184 28.696,977 29,113,631 31.530
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT J-20
INSURANCE SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED
Company Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
Utica National Property Blanket Building & Contents-
Replacement Cost Values $ 197,907,598 $ 1,000
-Additional Valuable Papers $ 100,000 $ 2,500
Utica National Umbrella Excess Liability
-Each Occurrence $ 20,000,000 $ -
Aggregate Limit of Liability $ 20,000,000
General Liability Each Occurrence $ 1,000,000 $ -
Aggregate Limit of Liability $ 3,000,000
Utica National Automotive Coverage
-Combined Single Limit $ 1,000,000 $ -
-Hired/Non-Owned $ 1,000,000 $ -
-Uninsured & Underinsured $ 1,000,000 3 -
Chubb Insurance Group  Inland Marine
-Electronic Data Processing Equipment $ 4,000,000 $ 1,000
Utica National Crime Coverage
-Blanket Employee coverage $ 350,000 $ 500
-Money & Securities On Premises $ 25,000 $ 500
Money & Securities Off Premises $ 25,000 $ 500
Forgery or Alteration $ 100,000 $ 500
Utica National Boiler & Machinery Coverage Included -
Utica National Board of Education
-Educators Legal Liabilitiy
Each Loss $ 1,000,000 $ 5,000
Aggregate $ 2,000,000 $ -
Utica National Fidelity Bonds
-Treasurer of School Monies $ 500,000
-Business Administrator/Board Secretary $ 50,000

Brown & Brown

Source: District Records

Workers' Compensation
-Professional - 56,319,396
-Non-Professional - 6,961,000

99.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Telecopier:
ARMOUR S. HULSART, C.PA, RM.A, P.S.A, (1858-1982) (732) 28§-8888 2807 Hurley Pond Road - Suite 100
ROBERT A. HULSART, C.PA, RMA, PSA, PO. Box 1409
ROBERT A. HULSART, JR,C.P.A, PSA. e-mail: Wall, New Jersey 07719-1409
e A ’" rah@monmouth.com {732) 681-4990

RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR,, CPA, PB.A.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

K-1

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Howell Township School District

County of Monmouth

Howell Township, New Jersey

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the Board of Education of the
Howell Township School District. in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey. as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. and have issued our report thereon dated October 11,2011, We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards.
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance. Department of Education. State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit. we considered the Howell Township Board of Education’s
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Howell Township Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Howell Township Board of
Education’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in infernal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not atlow
management or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented. or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial re
deseribed in the first paragraph of this section and would no
internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider 1o be material weaknesses. as

.

v identify all deficiencies in

defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Howell Township Board of
Education’s general-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of general-
purpose financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and. accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of
Finance. Department of Education. State of New Jersey.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
the Howell Township Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

Robert A. Hulsart

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322

Robert A. Hulsart and Company

October 11,2011
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Telecopier:
ARMOUR S. HULSART, C.PA, R.M.A, P.S.A. (1959-1992) 732) 2§§-8888 2807 Hurley Pond Road - Suite 100
ROBERT A. HULSART, C.PA, RMA, PSA ! PO, Box 1409
ROBERT A. HULSART, JR..C.PA,, PSA. e-mail: Wall, New Jersey 07719-1409

(732} 681-4890

rah@monmouth.com
RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR,, C.PA, PS.A

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND

NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Howell Township School District

County of Monmouth

Howell Township. New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Howell Township School
District. in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey. with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major
federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30. 2011, Howell Township Board of
Education’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws.
regulations. contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs is the
responsibility of the Howell Township Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Howell Township Board of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: the audit requirements as
prescribed by the Division of Finance. Department of Education, State of New Jersey: OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States. Locul Governments, and f\f‘()z:af}r()ffz Organizations: and New Jersey OMB’s
Circular 04-04. Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grams, State Grants and State Aid. Those
standards. OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04. require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements g‘cfe%‘rad to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis. evidence about the Howell
Township Board of i*éuczmim s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the ¢ n,sz“:‘zsi@m.as We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Howell
Township Board of Education’s compliance with those ff*qmmmm%s

In our opinion. the Board of Education of the Howell Township School District. in the County of
Monmouth. State of New Jersey. complied. in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are ¢ ;Eg}iééab%: 1o each of its major federal and state programs for the vear ended June 30.
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Internal Control OQver Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the Howell T ownship School District is
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Howell Township Board of Education’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Howell Township
Board of Education’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency. or combination of deficiencies. in internal control over compliance such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identity all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
the Howell Township Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other
federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Robert A. Hulsart

Iicensed Public School Accountant
No. 322

Robert A. Hulsart and Company

October 11, 2011
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

JUNE 30,2011

NOTE 1: General

The accompanying schedules of financial assistance present the activity of all federal and
state financial assistance programs of the Board of Education. Howell Township School District.
The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's general-purpose financial
statements. All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as
well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed other government agencies is
included on the schedule of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2: Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are
presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting with the exception of programs
recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and
those recorded in the special revenue fund. which are presented using the budgetary basis of
accounting. These bases of accounting are described in the Note 1(C) to the Board’s general-
purpose financial statements.

NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements

The general-purpose financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for
the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in
which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year,
whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when
expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual
basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current
budget year. which is mandated pursuant to P.L. 2003, ¢.97.(A3521). For GAAP purposes, that
payment is not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and
recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is
presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues. whereas the
GAAP basis does not.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $511.561
for the general fund and ($416.679) for the special revenue fund. See Note | for a reconciliation
of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special
revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s general
purpose financial statements on a GAAP basis as presented below:
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NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements (Continued)
Special Debt
Revenue Service Food
General Fund Fund Fund Service Total

State Assistance
Actual Amounts (Budgetary)
“Revenues” from the Schedule
of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance $ 33,646,786 189.600 1.098.492  21.200 34,956,078

Difference — Budget to “GAAP™
Grant Accounting Budgetary
Basis Differs from GAAP
in that Encumbrances are
Recognized as Expenditures
and the Related Revenue
is Recognized (20.609) (20.609)

On Behalf Payments
Recognized for GAAP
Statements but Not
Included in the Schedule
of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance 3.243.456 3,243,456

The Last State Aid Payment
Is Recognized as Revenue
for Budgetary Purposes,
and Differs from GAAP
Which does not Recognize
This Revenue Until the
Subsequent Year When the
State Recognizes the Related
Expense (GASB 33) 511.561 511,561

Total State Revenue as Reported
on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes
Fund Balances $ 37,401,803 168,991 1.098,492 21,200 38,690,486
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NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements {(Continued)
Special Debt
Revenue Service Food
General Fund Fund Fund Service Total

Federal Assistance
Actual Amounts (Budgetary)
“Revenues” from the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal
Awards $73.948  3.022.,678 474408 3.

71.034

(5

Difference — Budget to “GAAP”
Grant Accounting Budgetary
Basis Differs from GAAP in that
Encumbrances are Recognized as
Expenditures, and the Related
Revenue is Recognized (396.070) (396.070)

Total Federal Revenue as
Reported on the Statement
of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund
Balances $73,948 2,626,608 474408 3.174.964

NOTE 4: Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the
related federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5: Other

The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the District for the year ended June 30.2011. TPAF Social Security
Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer’s share of social
security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30,2011, Revenues and
expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value received
and current year distributions respectively.



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

K-6
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011
Part I - Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statement Section Unqualified
(A) Type of auditor's report issued:
(B) Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
2) Were reportable conditions(s) identified that were
not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X No
(C) Noncompliance material to general purpose financial
statements noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards Section
(D) Dollar threshold used to determine Typed A programs: $300.000
(E) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
(F) Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
(G) Internal control over compliance:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
2) Were reportable condition(s) identified that were
not considered to material weaknesses? Yes X No
(H) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 (section .510(a})? Yes X No

(1) Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)
84.027

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

1.D.E.A. Part B (Special Education Cluster)

84.173

IDEA-Preschool (Special Education Cluster)

84.391

LD.E.A Part B-ARRA (Special Education Cluster)

84.392

ARRA-IDEA-Preschool (Special Education Cluster)

10.550

Food Distribution (Child Nutrition Cluster)

0.553

)
L

School Breakfast Program (Child Nutrition Cluster)

i

¥4

{

e

National School Lunch Program (Child Nutrition Cluster)

i LA

|
10.5355
10.556

L
*

0.

Special Milk Program (Child Nutrition Cluster)
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

K-6
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011
Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued)
State Awards Section
(1) Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs: $1.,048.682.00
(K) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
(L) Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
(M) Internal control over compliance:
(1) Material Weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
(2) Were reportable condition(s) identified that were
not considered to material weaknesses? Yes X No
(N) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with N.J. OMB's Circular 04-047 Yes X No

(O) Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s)
11-495-034-5120-089

11-495-034-5120-078

1-495-034-5095-002

|
11-495-034-5120-044
11-495-034-5120-017

Name of State Program

Special Education Aid

Equalization Aid

Reimbursed Social Security

Extraordinary Aid

Debt Service Aid type 11
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111
HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

K-6
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance
related to the general purpose financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing Standards.

Finding: None

Criteria or specific requirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

Questioned Costs: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Recommendation: N/A




HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

K-6
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 3 - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance
including questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04.

FEDERAL AWARDS
Finding: N/A

Federal program information: N/A

Criteria or specific requirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

Questioned Costs: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Recommendation: N/A

Management's response: N/A

STATE AWARDS
Finding: None

State program information: N/A

Criteria or specific requirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

Questioned Costs: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Recommendation: N/A

Management's response: N/A




HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 1.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

K-7
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Prior Audit Findings:

None



